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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report and audited financial statements of Airtel Uganda Limited {“the Company™)
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which show the state of affairs of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the operation of a cellular telephone netwerk in Uganda and the
provision of telecommunication services.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
Profit before taxation 581,614 450,215
Taxation charge (175,748) {133,540}
Profit for the year 405,868 316,675
RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The profit for the year amounted to Ushs 405,868 million (2019: Ushs 316,675 million). The Directors
declared interim dividends for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounting to Ushs 263,296 million
(2019: 172,480} at a rate of Ushs 18,700 per share {refer note 30 of the Financial Statements).

The Birectors recommend afinal dividend of Ushs 135,168 million at a rate of Ushs. 8,600 per share making
a total dividend for the year of Ushs 398,464 million (2019: 293,568 million) at a rate of Ushs 28,300 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be paid on or before 30
lune 2021 to the shareholders on the register at the close of business on 31 March 2021. This final dividend
is not included as a liability in the financial statements.

RESERVES

The reserves of the Company are set out on page 11 in the Statement of Financial Position.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:

Hannington Karuhanga - Non-Executive Director (Appointed Member effective 6 September
2000 and Chairman effective 1 Aprii 2016)

Manoj Murali - Executive Director (Appointed effective 1 November 2020)

VG Somasekhar - Executive Director (Appointed effective 1 September 2017 and
Resigned effective 31 October 2020)

Alok Bafna - Non-Executive Director {Appointed effective 1 April 2017)

Rama Krishna Lella - Non-Executive Director {Appointed effective & February 2019)

ian Basil Ferrao - Non-Executive Director {Appointed effective 16 September 2019)

The Directors were in office for the entire period unless otherwise stated.



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED}
Shareholding

The shareholding of the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows

Name of shareholder No. of shares
Bharti Airtel Africa BV 10
Bharti Airtel Uganda Holdings BV 14,080,000
COVID-19

% of shareholding

0.0001%
93.9555%

The Covid-19 pandemic has interrupted business growth across the world, however, the telecom sector
remained a pivot sector amidst tcugh times providing unabated connectivity of network and data. Cur
network response team was quick to respond to customers' demand across the country to ensure
uninterrupted service for our customers while ensuring compiete safety for our field staff. Partnering with
our strategic and operations partners, we continuously worked to keep the network running to provide
essential telecom service across Uganda. Based on the Company's assessment, no material impact has

been noted due to the pandemic.

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche, Certified Public Accountant of Uganda, have expressed their willingness to continue in
office in accordance with the provisions of Section 167 (2) of the Companies Act, 2012 of the laws of

Uganda.

By Order of the Board

__Secrétary

e

2021

Kampala



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Companies Act, 2012 of the Laws of Uganda reguires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the State of Financial Affairs of the Company as at the
end of the financiai year and of its operating results for that year. The Act also requires the Directors to ensure
the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the
financial position of the Company. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company.

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the internal control. The Directors delegate responsibility for
internal control 1o Management. Standards and systems of internal control are designed and implemented by
Management to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the Financial Statements
and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the Company’s assets. Appropriate
accounting policies suppeorted by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, are applied on a
consistent and using the going concern basis. These systems and controls include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation
of duties.

The Directors accept responsibifity for the year's Financial Statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2012 of
Uganda. The Directors are of the opinion that the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the financial affairs of the Company and of its operating results. The Directors further accept responsibility for
the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of Financial Statements,
as well as adequate systems of internal financial control,

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 11% day of March, 2021 and sigred on
its behalf by:

, D
Py
Yoo - S
B L~ =y
‘ . LN
y b i P
k] 5 :}{'“%
M?-ﬂéj Murali Hannington Karuhanga
;,f{ﬁreci\or Chairman
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Tel: +255 (417} 701 000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Airtel Uganda Limited set out on pages 10 to 59, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the vear then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Airtel
Uganda Limited as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
and are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2012 of the jaws of Uganda.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accardance with the International
Federation of Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {IFAC code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of Airtel Uganda Limited. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IFAC Code, and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing the audit of Airtel Uganda Limited.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Directors are responsitle for the other information, which comprises the information included in the
Directors’ report and statement of directors’ responsibilities as required by the Companies Act, 2012 of the
laws of Uganda. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

agoro® AN Murgva®® F Olwiri®*

Associate of Deloitte Africa, a2 Member of Detaitte Touche Tohmatsis Limited

The firm i3 Hicensed and regulated by Institute of Certiied Public Sccauntants of Uganda

Certified Public Accountant of Ugands



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TOTHE MEMBERS OF AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2012
of the laws of Uganda and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no reaiistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repeort that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgary, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and refated disclosures made by the Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repori. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



iNDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TG THE MEMBERS CF AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED {CONTINUED}

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {Continued)

¢«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We slso provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal requirements
As required by the Companies Act, 2012 of the laws of Uganda, we report to you based on our audit, that:

(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{i)  in our opinion, proper boocks of account have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books; and

{ii}  The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in
agreement with the books of account

The Engagement Partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Norbert
Kagoro, Practicing Number PO053.

\DJ&,{J@\ e 5\ ng_ S r}gﬁ_ .
Certified Public Accountant of Uganda Norbertm

Partner

ZG N\waﬂi._.,. 2021

Kampala



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Income
Revenue
Other income

Expenses:

Network operating expenses

Access charges

License fee/spectrum usage charges
Employee benefit expenses

Sales and marketing expenses
Other expenses

Depreciation & amortisation

Net operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Profit befare tax

Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Note

10{a}

2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
1,551,642 1,276,738
2,271 2,414
1,553,913 1,279,152
{201,405} (163,805}
{39,148} (43,052}
{43,380} (47,298}
{70,009} (59,217}
(202,916) {168,066
(108,452) {89,846}
(235,789) (206,743)
{901,108} (778,028}
652,804 501,124
6,297 36,847
(77,487) (87,756)
581,614 450,215
(175,746) {133,540}
405,868 316,675
4 27
405,872 316,702

10



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019
ASSETS Ushs miltion Ushs million
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 611,803 570,817
Capital work-in-progress 11 14,189 52,252
Right of use assets 12 422,245 409,743
investment property i3 - -
Intangible assets 14 470,876 112,956
Prepayments and other Non - current assets 17 (b} 18,545 8,343
1,537,658 1,154,111
Current assets
tnventories 15 1,944 2,618
Trade and other receivables 16 58,321 37,620
Prepayments and other current assets 17 {3} 62,069 65,536
Cash and cash equivalents 19 34,254 48,493
Income tax recoverable {Net} 10(c} 7,869 9,762
164,457 164,029
TOTAL ASSETS 1,702,115 1,318,140
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES o o
Equity
Share capital 20{a) 1,408 1,408
Share premium 20{b}) 15,128 16,128
Retained earnings 142,881 121,397
Other reserve 56 52
160,473 138,985
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 145,27C 368,267
Lease liabilities 25 427,265 428,622
Provisions 24 2,091 2,084
Deferred tax liability 10{d) 74,352 59,760
Cther non current liabilities 26 (a) 115,192 -
764,170 858,733
Current liabilities
Borrowings 21 447,287
Lease liabilities 25 97,155 80,973
Trade and other payables 22 213,691 224537
Deferred revenue 23 15,083 13,953
Provisions 24 761 652
Other current liabilities 26 (b} 1,989 -
Derivative Financial Instrument 27 1,508 307
777,472 320,422
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,702,115 1,318,140
13 ., - ¢
T W3, o i
Thei'ﬁpand}{ stgtements ow/gges 10 to 59 were approved for issue by the Board of Directorsn 1™ #ay of March,2021 and signed on its behalf
by: §° : i { P
1 T

NN

i
4

Hannington Karuhanga

Manoj ?Vtg{r;ﬁ“ )
Director ; 5 Chairman

11
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AIRTEL UGANDA UIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIWITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortisation

{Gain}/Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain on retirement of Right of Use assets
Interest income

Unrealised foreign exchange gains
Interest on borrowings

Interest on finance lease

Interest on spectrum fees

Gain on retirement of lease asset

Debt origination cost

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital;

Decrease/lIncrease) in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in prepayments and other current assets
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations before tax
income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Loans to related parties
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowing

interest paid on finance lease

Repayment of finance lease obligation
Repayment of deferred spectrum fee
Dividends Paid

Net cash used in financing activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note

i5
16
17
22
24

10(e)

1t
i4
11
18{b)
9fa}

21
21

25
25

30

19

19

2020
Ushs miflion

581,614
235,789

(13)
{2,748)
{3.551)
23,837
42,494

4,292
{257}

881,459

674
{20,700)
{10,547
20,794
1,246

872,926
1158,403)

714,523

(178,320
{242,708}
210

3,746

{418,072}

145,270

{22,354}
142,494
(75,580}
{11,333}
{384,384}

{390,875}

(94,424)

48,493

{45,931}

2019
Ushs million

450,215
206,743

25

{237)
(25,842
{11,129
42,673
41,337

100

703,885

{1,234)
(637)
{27,421)
23,700
{3,623)

594,670
{101,025}

{211,074)
{4,619)

935,060
25,842

745,209

{749,932)
{45,738)
{41,337)

168,491

{397,760}

{1,304,258)

34,595

13,398

48,493

13



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Airtel Uganda Limited is incorporated in Uganda under the Companies Act as a limited liability Company,
and is domiciled in Uganda. The address of its registered office is Airtel House, Plot 16A Clement Hill Road,
Kampala, Uganda. Its principal activities are the operation of a cellular telephone network in Uganda,
provision of telecommunication services and mobile money services. The Company is subsidiary of Bharti
Airtel Uganda Holdings B.V. The Step Up Parent is Airtel Africa PLC {listed in London stock exchange and
Nigeria stock exchange).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {IFRS's)
2.1 New and amended Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current financial year, the Company has not been impacted by the amendment to IFRS 16 {as
issued by the IASB in May 2020} in advance of its effective date.

In the current year, the Company has appiied the below amendments to IFRS Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Board that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January
2020, Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in
these financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and
are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of
‘obscuring’ material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new
definition.

The threshold -for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ to ‘could
reasonably be expected to influence’.

The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in 1AS
1. In addition, the IASB amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a
definition of material or refer to the term ‘material’ tc ensure consistency.

Amendments to References 1o the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The Company has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year. The amendments include consequential
amendments to affected Standards so that they refer to the new Framework. Not all amendments,
however, update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the Framewaork so
that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to indicate
which version of the Framework they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in
2001, the 1ASB Framework of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions
in the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual
Framework.

14



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS’s)
(CONTINUED)

2.1 New and amended Standards that are effective for the current year {continued)
impact of the initial application of Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16

in May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Congessicns (Amendment to IFRS 16) that provides
practical refief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct conseguence of COVID-
13, by introducing a practica! expedient to IFRS 16. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not
to assess whether a COVID- 19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change were not a
lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19
and only if all of the following conditions are met:

a. The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

b. Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021 {a
rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 june
2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021}; and

¢.  Thereis no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

in the current financial year, the Company has not been impacted by the amendment to IFRS 16 (as
issued by the IASB in May 2020) in advance of its effective date.

2.2 New and Revised iFRSs in issue but not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following
new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not vet effective;

- Amendments to IFRS 3 on Reference to the Conceptual Framewaork

- Amendments to IAS 1 on Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

- Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

- Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

The Directars do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact
on the financial statements of the Company in future periods.

15



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a)

(b}

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of Airtel Uganda Limited have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2012 of the Laws of Uganda. The Financial Statements are presented in Uganda Shillings and all
values are rounded to the nearest millicn.

For purposes of reporting under the Companies Act, 2012 of the Laws of Uganda, the Balance Sheet
in these Financial Statements is represented hy the Statement of Financial Position and the Profit and
Loss account is represented by the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous year, except for the
change in accounting policies set out below.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Deferred Spectrum Payments:

During the vear ended 31 December 2020, the Company has capitalized deferred spectrum license
payments, for which the Company is under an obligation for payment tiil the expiry of the license
period. Consequently, intangible assets have been recognized at the present value of such payments
amounting to Ushs 130,662mn with a corresponding liability of Ushs 126,849mn and reversal of
prepayments of Ushs 3,813mn.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants. The Company’s accounting policies
require, measurement of certain financial/non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value {either on a
recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised
cost are required to be disclosed.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial/non-financial assets
and liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level
fair-value hierarchy {which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement). Accordingly,
the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of measurement

fc}

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Leve!l 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of contro!l of promised products or services to the customer at
the consideration which the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange of those
products or services, net of any taxes/duties and discounts. When determining the consideration to
which the Company is entitled for providing promised products or services via intermediaries, the
Company assesses whether the intermediary is a principal or agent in the onward sale to the end
customer. To the extent that the intermediary is considered a principal, the consideration to which
the Company is entitled is determined to be that received from the intermediary. To the extent that
the intermadiary is considered an agent, the consideration to which the Company is entitled is
determined to be the amount received from the customer; the upfront discount provided to the
intermediary is recognised as a cost of sale.

The Company has entered inta certain muktiple-element revenue arrangements, which involve the
delivery or performance of multiple products, services or rights to use assets. At the inception of the
arrangement, all the deliverables therein are evaluated to determine whether they represent distinct
performance obligations, and if so, they are accounted for separately.

Total consideration related to the multiple element arrangements is allocated to each parformance
obligation based cn their relative standalone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices are
determined based on the list prices at which the Company sells eguipment and network services
separately.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, each distinct performance obligation is satisfied. The main
categories of revenue and the basis of recognition are as follows:

e Service revenue

Service revenue is derived from the provision of telecommunication services and mobile money
services to customers. The majority of the customers of the Company subscribe to the services on a
pre-paid basis.

Telecommunication service revenues mainly pertain to usage, subscription charges for voice, dats,
messaging and value added services and customer onboarding charges, which include activation
charges.

Telecommunication services {comprising voice, data and SMS) are considered to represent a singie
performance obligation as all are provided over the Company’s network and transmitted as data
representing a digital signal on the network. The transmission consumes network bandwidth and
therefore, irrespective of the nature of the communication, the customer ultimately receives access
to the network and the right to consume network bandwidth.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Revenue recognition {continued)

Majority of the customers pay in advance for services of the Company, these cash amounts are
recognised in deferred income an the statement of financial position and transferred to the income
statement when the service obligation has been performed/when the usage of services becomes
remote,

The Company recognises revenue from these services over time as they are provided. Revenue is
recognised over time based on actual units of telecommunication services provided during the
reporting period as a proportion of the total units of telecommunication services to be provided.

Subscription charges are recognised over the subscription pack validity period. Customer onboarding
revenue is recognised upon successful onboarding of customers i.e. upfront.

Revenues recognised in excess of amounts invoiced are classified as unbilled revenue. if amounts
invoiced/collected from a customer are in excess of revenue recognised, a deferred revenue/advance
income is recognised.

Service revenues also includes revenue from interconnection/roaming charges for usage of the
Company’s network by ather operators for voice, data, messaging and signaling services. These are
recognised upon transfer of control of services being transferred over time.

Revenues from long distance operations comprise voice services and bandwidth services {including
installation), which are recognised on provision of services and over the period of respective
arrangements.

The Company has interconnact agreements with local and foreign operaters. This allows customers
from either network to originate or terminate calls to each other’s network. Revenue is earned and
recognised as per bilateral agreements when other operators’ calls are terminated to the Company’s
network i.e. the service is rendered.

As part of the mobile money services, the Company earns commission from merchants for facilitating
recharges, bill payments and other merchant payments. It also earns commissions on transfer of
monies from one customer wallet to another, Such commissions are recognised as revenue at a peint
in time on fulfilment of these services by the Company.

Costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer

The Company defers costs to obtain or fulfil contracts with customers over expected average
customer life.

e Equipment sales
Equipment sales mainly pertain to sale of telecommunication equipment and related accessories for

which revenue is recognised when the control of equipment is transferred to the customer i.e. transferred
at a point in time.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d}

(e}

Functional currency and translation of foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the entity operates {i.e. ‘functionat currency’).

The financial statements are presented in Uganda Shillings, which is also the functional, and
presentation currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into the functional
currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent re-statement/settiement, recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive income within finance costs/finance income. Non-monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate
prevalent, at the date of initial recognition (in case they are measured at historical cost) or at the date
when the fair value is determined {in case they are measured at fair value) —with the resulting foreign
exchange difference, on subsequent re-statement/settlement, recognised in the profit and oss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The equity items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at historical exchange rate.
Property, plant and equipment

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured refiably.

Allcategories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and subsequently stated
at historical cost less depreciation and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

When significant parts of PPE are required to be replaced at regular intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as separate component of assets. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its
carrying amount is de-recognised from the statement of financial position and cost of the new item
of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures that are incurred after an item of PPE has been put to use, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
such costs are incurred. However, in situations where the said expenditure can be measured reliably,
and is probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company, itis included
in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{e} Property, plant and equipment (continued}

()

Depreciation on PPE is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives.
Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. The Company has established the
estimated range of useful lives for different categories of PPE as follows:

Categories Period {Years)
Lower of Period of

L hold L
easehoid Land lease or 20 Years

Buildings 20
Plant and Machinery 3-25
Computer equipment 3
Furniture & fixture and Office Equipment 2-5
wotor vehicles 3-5

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effect of any change in the
estimated useful lives, residual values and/or depreciation method are accounted prospectively,
and accordingly, the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
cireumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts and are taken into account in
determining profit.

PPE in the course of construction is carried at cost, less any accumulated impairment and presented
separately as capital wark-in-progress {‘CWIP'} including capital advances in the statement of financial
position until capitalised. Such cost comprises of purchase price (including non-refundable duties and
taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly atiributable cost.

intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that
future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets with infinite lives are amortised over their econcmic useful life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED])

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{f} intangible assets {continued)

Goodwill represents the cost of the acquired business in excess of the fair value of identifiable net
assets purchased. Goodwill is not amortised, however, it is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The Company has established the astimated useful fives of different categories of intangible assets
as follows:

¢ Software
Software are amortised over the pericd of the ficense, generally not exceeding three years.

e Licences (including spectrum)

Acquired licenses and spectrum are amortised commencing from the date when the related
network is avaitable for intended use in the relevant jurisdiction. The useful ife is ten years.

In addition, the Company incurs a fee on licenses/spectrum that is calculated based on the
revenue amount of the period. Such revenue-share based fee is recognised as a cost in the
statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

Other acquired intangible assets
Other acquired intangible assets include the following:

Customer relationship - Over the estimated life of such relationships which ranges from one year
to five years.

The useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at least at
each financiat year end so as to ensure that the method and period of amortisation are consistent
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effect of any change in
the estimated useful lives and/or amortisation method is accounted prospectively, and
accordingly, the amortisation is calculated over the remaining revised useful life.

Further, the cost of intangible assets under development includes the amount of spectrum
allotted to the Company and related costs for which services are vet to be rolled out and are
presenied separately in the statement of financial position.

(g} Accounting for leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses a contract as, or containing, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether the contract invelves the use of an identifled asset, the Company has
the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{g) Accounting for leases {continued)
Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease agreements in which it is the lessee in the statement of financial position. The lease kability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities include the net present value of fixed
payments {including in-substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that are based on
consumer price index {"CPI'), the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising that option.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments including due to changes in CPlor if
the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option or when the lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the related right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs, and restoration costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-use asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease Hability.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end
of the useful life of the underlying asset or the end of the lease term, whichever is shorter. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of the
underlying property, plant and equipment.

In the statement of financial position, the right-of-use assets and lease labilities are presented
separately.

When a contract includes lease and nen-iease components, the Company allocates the consideration
in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of each lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease compenents.

Short-term leases

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

Accounting for leases (continued)

Company as a lessor
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under a finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to
the net investment in the leased assets. Finance lease income s allocated to the periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment cutstanding in respect of the finance
lease.

Renta! income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
retevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amaount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

when a contract includes tease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration under the contract to each component.

The Comparny enters into ‘indefeasible right to use’ {'tRU’} arrangements wherein the right to use the
assets is given over the substantial part of the asset life. However, as the title to the assets and the
significant risks associated with the operation and maintenance of these assets remains with the
Company, such arrangements are recognised as operating lease. The contracted price is recognised
as revenue during the tenure of the agreement. Unearned 1RU revenue received in advance is
presented as deferred revenue within liabilities in the statement of financial position.

inventories

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in
first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses. The costs comprise its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing it to its present location and conditicn.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash in hand, bank balances and any deposits with criginal
maturities of three months or less {that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash
equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value). However, for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, in addition to above items, any bank overdrafts that are integral part of the
Company’s cash management and balance held under mobile money trust are alsc included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
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AIRTEL UGANDA UIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a relizble estimate can be made of the amount of the
cbiigation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the relevant obligation, using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money {if the impact of discounting is significant) and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to un-winding of discount over passage of time is recognised within
finance costs.

Employee benefiis

The Company's employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, defined contribution to
plans, defined benefit plans, other long term benefits including compensated absences and employee
stock option plans. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services
are randered by the Company employees. Short-term employee benefits are recognised in Statement
of comprehensive income at undiscounted amounts during the period in which the related services
are rendered. Details of long term employee benefits are provided below:

Defined contribution plans

The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss as and when the
services are rendered by employees. The Company has no further cbligations under these plans
beyond its periodic contributions.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit plans in form of ‘Retirement Benefits’ and ‘Severance Pay’ wherein,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Methed, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each quarterly reporting periods. The obligation towards
the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet under provisions, at the present value of the
defined benefit obligations. The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows, using appropriate discount rate.

Defined benefit costs are split into the following categories:

¢ service costs, which includes current service cost, past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements;

¢ interestexpense; and

¢ remeasurements.

The Company recognises service costs within profit or loss as employee benefitexpenses. Past service,
cost is recognised in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs. Gains or losses
on settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs. Interest cost is
calcufated by applying a discount rate to the defined benefit liability and is recognised within finance
costs. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately as a charge
or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
recognised in other comprehensive income are not reclassified

24



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{k} Employee benefits (continued)

Other long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as well as other long-term
benefits. Compensated absences benefit comprises encashment and the availing of leave balances
that were earnad by the employees over the period of past employment.

The Company provides for the liability (presented under provisions) towards the said benefits on the
basis of actuarial valuation carried cut quarterly as at the reporting date, by an independent qualified
actuary using the projected-unit-credit method. The related re-measurements are recogrised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Provident Fund

The Company contributes to the Staff Provident Fund. Under this scheme, the employee contributes
5% of their gross salary while the employer contributes 5% of each employee’s gross salary. There is
an option for employees to contribute over and above the mandatory 5%. The total remittance to the
fund per month in respect of each employee is 10%. The contribution is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the year in which it is incurred.

National Social Security Fund

The Company contributes to the National Social Security Fund a National savings scheme mandated
by Government. Under this scheme, the empioyee contributes 5% of their gross salary while the
employer contributes 10% of each employee’s gross salary 1o NSSF.

Employee Stock Option Plan {ESOP}

The Group issues cash-settled share based options to senior management of the Company. These are
measured at fair value on the date of grant. The fair value determined on the grant date of the cash
settled share based options is expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimates of
the shares that will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting pericd, until the liability is settled,
and at the date of settlement, liability is re-measured at fair value, with any changes in fair value
pertaining to the vesting period till the reporting date is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate of the charge to the profit or loss in respect of current income
tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or foss account unless it relates to items
recognised directly in Equity, in which case itis also recognised directly in Equity. Current income tax
is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit for the year determined in accordance
with the Ugandan Income Tax Act.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liahility method, on all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying vatues for financial reporting
purposes. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and faws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax liability is setted.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets, recognised and unrecognisad, are reviewed at each reporting date and assessed
for recoverability based on best estimates of future taxable profits.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES {CONTINUED)

{m} Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the pericd they occur.

Financial instruments
Recognition, classification and presentation

Financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractuat provisions of the financial instrument.
The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

* those to be measured subseguently at fair vaiue {either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss); and

e those 1o be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contraciual terms of the cash flows.

The Company has classified all non-derivative financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety for determining the
contractual terms of the cash flow and accordingly, embedded derivatives are not separated.
However, derivatives embedded in non-financial instrument/financial liabilities (measured at
amortised cost) host contracts are classified as separate derivatives if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts.

Financial assets and liabilities arising from different transactions are off-set against each other and
the resultant net amount is presented in the statement of financial position, if and only when, the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the related recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the [iabilities simultaneously.

Measurement - Non-derivative financial instruments

i} Initial measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,

in the case of lcans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Other transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{n} Financial instruments {continued)

if)

ii)

Subsequent measurement - financial assets
The subseguent measurement of non-derivative financial assets depends on their classification
as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (‘EIR’} method {if the impact of disceunting/any transaction costs is significant).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVIPL'}

All equity instruments and financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI) are measured at FVIPL. Interest
{basis EIR method) and dividend income from financial assets at FVTPLis recognised in the profit
and loss within finance income/finance costs separately from the other gains/losses arising from
changes in the fair value.

impairment

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and debt instrument carried at FVTOC! The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month expected credit
loss {("ECL") is used to provide for impairment loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is used.

However, only in case of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Subsequent measurement - financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method {if the
impact of discounting/any transaction costs is significant).

Measurement - derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including separated embedded derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship are classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or lass. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value. They are subsequently measured at thelr fair value, with changes in fair
value being recognised in profit ar loss within finance income/finance costs.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{n) Financial instruments {continued)

) Hedging activities

Fair value hedge

The Company uses derivative financial instruments {e.g. interest rate/currency swaps) to
manage/mitigate their exposure to the risk of change in fair value of the borrowings. The
Company designates certain interest swaps to hedge the risk of changes in fair value of
recognised borrowings atiributable to the hedged interest rate risk. The effective and ineffective
portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in profit and loss within finance income/finance costs, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged liability that is attributable to the hedged risk. If the hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item is amortised to profit or loss over the period to remaining maturity of the hedged
Item.

Cash flow hedge

The Company uses derivative financial instruments {e.g. foreign currency forwards, options,
swaps) to manage their exposure to foreign exchange and price risk. Further, the Company
designates certain derivative financial instruments {or its components) as hedging instruments
for hedging the exchange rate fluctuation risk attributable to either a recognised item or a highly
probable forecast transaction: {‘Cash flow hedge’). The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivative financial instruments {or its componeants) that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges, are recognised in other comprehensive income and held as cash flow hedge
reserve ['CFHR’) — within other components of equity. Any gains/{losses) relating to the
ineffective portion, are recognised immediately in profit or loss within finance income/finance
costs. The amounts accumulated in equity are re-classified to the profit and loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit/{loss).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a cash flow hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gains/{losses) existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised {on the basis as discussed in the above paragraph) when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit and loss. However, at any point of
time, when a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gains/{losses)
that were reported in eqguity is immediately transferred to the profit and loss within finance
income/finance costs.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement of financial position when the
underlying obligations are extinguished, discharged, lapsed, cancelled, expires or legally
released. The financial assets are derecognisad from the statement of financial position when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired, or have been transferred
and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. The
difference in the carrying amount and consideration is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{0} Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment, at least annually or earlier, in case circumstances indicate that
their carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount (higher of fair value less costs of sell and
the value -in- use). For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill is allocated to a cash-
generating-unit (‘CGW) or group of CGUs (‘CGUs’Y which are expected to benefit from the
acquisition-related synergies and represent the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes, but not higher than an operating segment. A CGU
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.

fmpairment occurs when the carrying value of a CGU/CGUs including the goodwill, exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the CGU/CGUs. The recoverable amount of a CGU/CGUs is the
higher of its fair value ess costs to sell and its value in use. Value-in-use is the present value of future
cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU/CGUs.

The total impairment loss of a CGU/CGUs is allocated first to reduce the carrying value of goodwill
allocated to that CGU/CGUs and then to the other assets of that CGU/CGUs - on pro-rata basis of
the carrying value of each asset.

Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, Intangible assets and intangible assets under
development

At each reporting period date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, right-of-use
assets, CWIP and finite lived intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Intangible assets under development are tested for
impairment, at-least annually or earlier, in case circumstances indicate that it may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (that is, higher of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis, unless the asset does
not genarate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, in which case the
recoverable amountis determined at the CGU level to which the said asset belongs. If such individual
assets or CGU are considered to be impaired, the impairment 1o be recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the asset/CGU
exceeds their estimated recoverable amount and allocated on pro-rata basis.

Reversal of impairment losses

Impairment oss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. Other impairment losses are reversed in the
statement of comprehensive income and the carrying value is increased to its revised recoverable
amount provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying value that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the said asset/CGU in previous years.

{p) Asset Retiremnent obligation {ARQ)

This is a provision for costs expected in the future te dismantle telecommunication towers and retait
shops and restore the sites to their condition prior to installation of the Company’s equipment. The
costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated
cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are
discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the asset retirement liability.
The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in profit or loss as a finance
cost. The estimated future costs of ARO are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes
in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost
of the asset.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

{r}

(t)

Investment property

This is property held to earn rental income or capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business, or administration purposes. investment property is measured at cost.

When the use of the property changes, it is reclassified either to property, plant and equipment or
inventories, and it fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

Statement of cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as per 1AS-7 "Statement of cash flows”, whereby
profit for the period is adjusted for the effect of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferral or
accrual of past or future cash operating receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities are segregated.

Share capital and Share premium

Issued ordinary shares are classified as Equity when the Company has an un-conditional right to avoid
delivery of cash or ancther financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment of Capital are
at the sole and absolute discretion of the Company and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever
to that effect. Any premium received over and above the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share
premium’ in Equity.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to confirm with changes in presentation
in the current year,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, and all assets and liabilities which are not current {as discussed in
the below paragraphs) are classified as non-current assets and labilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating eycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within
twetve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Aliability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held
primarily for the purpose of trading, itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period,
or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Derivatives designated in hedging relationship and separated embedded derivatives are classified
based on the hedged itern and the host contract respectively.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resalution of the Directors on 11% March 2021.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
{v} Contingencies

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligationthat may, but probably will not, require an cutflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised and disclosed only where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(w} Dividends

S

Dividend to shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from Equity, in the year in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. However, interim dividends declared by the Board
of directors, which does not need sharehalders’ approval, are recognised as a liability and deducted
from retained earnings, in the year in which the dividends are so declared.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires Management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or flability affected in future periods. The key
assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabifities within the next financial year are as follows:

{a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
income taxes
The Company is subject to income taxes under the Income Tax Act 1997 (as amended}. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
Property, plant and equipment
Estimates of residual values are based on management judgment in addition to the estimates of
expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment. The depreciation rates are set out in
accounting policy in note 3(d}.

Intangible assets

Intangihle assets are amortised over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Contingent liabilities and provisions

The Company is involved in various legal, tax and regulatory matters, the outcome of which may not
be favorable to the Company. Management in consultation with the legal, tax and other advisers assess
the likefihood that a pending claim will succeed. The Company has applied its judgement and has
recognized liabilities based on whether additional amounts will be payable and has included
contingent liabilities where economic outflows are considered possible but not probable.

Inventory obsolescence

The Company provides for obsolete and siow-moving inventary based on Management’s estimates of
the usability of inventory.

(b} Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

The critical judgements, which the management has made in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies and have the most significant impact on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements, are discussed below:

Separating lease and non-lease components

The consideration paid by the Company in telecommunication towers lease contracts include the
use of land and passive infrastructure as well as maintenance, security, provision of energy etc.
services. Therefore, in determining the allocation of consideration between lease and non-lease
components, for the additional servicas that are not separately priced, the Company performs
detailed analysis of cost split to arrive at relative stand-alone prices of each of the components.

Determining the incremental borrowing rate for lease contracts

The Company has recognised lease liabilities at present value using the incremental borrowing
rate {IBR} based on considerations specific to the lease agreement. Since determination of
incremental borrowings is not directly available for the given markets in which Company operates,
the Company has used judgement in determining the IBR by taking into consideration risk free
borrowing rate based on the IBR used across the Company of 6.99% for USD leases and 9.75% for
Ushs leases.

Determining the lease term

Under IFRS 16 if it is reasonably certain that a lease will be extended, the Company is required to
estimate the expected lease period in excess of the current contractual terms. The Company has
various lease agreesments with a right to extend /renew wherein it considers the nature of the
contractual terms and economic factors to determine. The Company has used judgement in
determining the lease period considering such factors and the lease liability has been calculated
using the remaining contractual lease pericd for all of such fease contracts.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

5

4.1 Significant transactions/new developments
(a) National Payment System for Mobile services

On 4th September, 2020, a new law, the National Payment Systems Act, 2020 was enacted to
regulate Payment Systems and Services (including Mohile {Electronic) Money Services). The
Act replaces the Mobile Money Guidelines, 2013. The Act regulates operators of payment
systems, payments service providers, issuers of payment instruments and issuers of electronic
money. All these will now require ficences issued by Bank of Uganda with the exception of
payment systems operated by the BOU. The Act has 3 transitional provision that requires
holders of existing licences issued by the BOU to operate a system to apply for a licence in
accordance with the Act within 12 months of its commencement.

As a result, Airtel Money operations will have to be separated from GSM operations based
on National Payment System (NPS) regulation and guidelines which are yet to be issued by
Bank of Uganda.

(b} Licence Renewal of PSP License

In October 2020, the Company renewed its Public Service Provider Licence (PSP) for 20 years
with Uganda Communication Commission and this has been recorded as Intangible Assets.
The Licence renewa! runs for period July 2020 to June 2040. The payment of Ugx 277bn has
been made for the period covering July 2020 to june 2030,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POUICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: Market risk {including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance, but the Company does
not hedge any risks.

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors,
al Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates locally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the US dofiar. Foreign exchange risk arises from adverse changes
in the local/ operating currency rates to other foreign currencies for which commercial transactions
occur in the course of operation and from recognised assets and liabilities.

The Company’s foreign exchange risk management includes formal hedging with Local banks and
monitoring of the movement in the rates is done on daily basis to get a favourable and limiting of the
amounts traded when the rate is not favourable. Following the significant exchange rate fluctuations
historically, Airte! has continuously embarked on aggressive negotiations to have all local suppliers of
operational expenditure items charge the Company in focal currency.
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

o} Market risk (continued)

At 31 December 2020, if the Uganda Shilling had weakened/strengthenad by 5% to 3,833/3,468
against the US Dollar with all other variables heid constant, as opposed to actuat as at year end of
3,650.25, pre-tax profit for the year would have been Ushs 30,873 million (2019: Ushs 31,523
mitlion} lower/higher mainly as a result of US Dellar Habilities exceeding the US Dollar assets.

Foreign Currency Exposure

Particulars 2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
Cash & cash equivalents {net] 13,839 1,324
Trade receivables 43,917 34,496
Trade payables (52,764} (60,966)
Borrowings (288,370) (289,535)
Amount due to related party (6,295} 16,727)
Amount due From related party 34,784 12,674
Lease liabilities {362,652) (321,723)
Total Foreign currency exposure (Net) (617,541} {630,457}
Note: Above figures are foreign currency denominated assets/liabilities only
The following US Dollar exchange rates applied during the period:
2020 2019
Average Rate 3,665.10 3,674.01
Closing Rate 3,650.25 3,665.00

(ii} Price risk
The Company does not held any financial instruments subject to price risk.

(it} Cash flow and interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rate relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations. The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost using negotiated
variable rates resulting in cash flow and interast rate risk. In principle, interest on loans is at 1.05% to
3.3% over the tondon Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR}. The local loan facilities have been drawn with

interest rates ranging from 10.04% to 13.051% {ncte 22).

At 31 December 2020, if the Interest rate would decrease/increase by 1% with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been increased/decreased by Ushs 5,926 million

{2019: Ushs 3,683 million) mainly as a result of interest rate change.
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)}
{b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables. The credit control function assesses the credit
quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual credit limits are set based on internal or external factors including a percentage
of the security deposit made or in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularty monitored.

Barring and denial of services is enforced for those customers that have not paid within the
required time.

The amount that best represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December
2020 is made up as follows:
2020 2019
Ushs million  Ushs million

Trade debtors 20,320 19,478
interconnect debtors 22,101 26,422
Roaming receivables 906 2,586
Amounts due from related parties 34,784 12,674
Other receivables 1,122 689
79,233 61,84%

Bank balances 27,061 18,455
Employee receivables 196 395
106,490 80,699

The Company offers standard credit terms of 30 days for its customers. All receivables less than 30
days are therefore neither past due nor impaired whilst receivables between 31 to 90 days are
deemed past due but not impaired.
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5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{b) Credit risk {continued}

(€

The ageing of the trade receivables is shown below:
2020 2019
Ushs million  Ushs million

G to 80 days 13,769 17,467
Total neither past due nor impaired 13,769 17,467
91 days and above 7,143 7.479
Total past due not impaired 7,143 7,479
Total not impaired 58,321 37,620
91 days and above 20,912 24,229
fmpaired 20,912 24,229

All trade receivabies past their due date by more than 90 days are 100% provided for white all
other receivables are carried at estimated recoverable value. All Interconnect receivables are
impaired after 9months and are provided for 100%. There are collateral/security deposits heid
whose fair value is the cash amount paid which is equivalent to Ushs 3,995 million {2019: Ushs
3,828 miflion) and whose credit quality of assets is not past due. All receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired are within their approved credit limits, and no receivables have had their
terms renegotiated.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the
availability of funding from an adeguate ameunt of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the finance department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit fines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date.
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c} Liquidity risk {continued)

The amounts disclosed in the breakdown below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
<1 year 1-2vyears >2 years Total
Ushs million Ushs million  Ushs million Ushs mitlion
At 31 December 2019:
Borrowings - 368,267 - 368,267
Trade and other accrued liabilities 224,537 - - 224537
Lease liabilities 80,973 95,219 333,403 509,555
305,510 463,486 333,403 1,102,399
At 31 December 2020:
Borrowings 447,287 70,270 75,000 592,557
Trade and other accrued liabilities 213,691 - - 213,691
Other liabilities 1,989 3,359 111,833 117,181
Lease liabilities 97,155 99,787 327,478 524,420
760,122 173,416 513,311 1,447,849
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to maximize returns for Shareholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital

struciure, the Company may issue new capital or sell assets or change who holds the risks and
henefits of the assets say through leasing or consignment stock arrangements to reduce debt. The
Company monitors capital and its objective is to increase the percentage of Equity held to Debt

and thus improving on gearing ratio over time.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019

Ushs million  Ushs million

Total borrowings 592,557 368,267
Total Lease Obligation 524,420 509,595
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (34,254} (48,493)
Net Debt 1,082,723 829,369
Total equity 160,473 138,985
Totai capital and Net Debt 1,243,196 968,354
Gearing ratio {%) 87.1 85.6

37



AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED}
6 REVENUE
Service revenue Note 6(a)
Sale of products

Total

6 {a} SERVICE REVENUE

Airtime revenue

VAS & Data revenue
Airtel money
Interconnect revenue
Roaming revenue

Total

2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
1,543,933 1,271,530
7,709 5,208
1,551,642 1,276,738
648,864 579,988
562,521 418,516
261,974 194,895
66,702 68,516
3,872 9,615
1,543,933 1,271,530

Primary commissions {Trade Discount) is discount provided to distributors on the sales price of RCVs
or E-top-ups. The discount is calculated as a percentage of the sales price and is contractually defined
per contracts in place between the Company and the Distributors. The Company recognises revenue

net of this commission expenses in line with IFRS 15.

Performance ohligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) amounting to 15,083 million at
31 December 2020 and 13,953 million as at 31 December 2012 will be satisfied within a period of one

year, respectively.

Revenue recognised that was included in the deferred revenue balance at the beginning of the year is

13,953 million {2019: 18,695 million}.
6 (b) OTHER INCOME

Miscelianeous income

7 (3} SALES AND MARKETING

Sales and distribution Expense
Marketing Expense

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
2,271 2,414

182,812 150,182

20,104 17,884

202,916 168,066
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7

{b) NETWORK OPERATING COSTS

{c)

Site Running

Repair and maintenance
Internet access and bandwidth
Electricity and water

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries

Defined contribution plan cost
Defined benefit plan cost
Staff welfare expenses

Others

OTHER EXPENSES

Cost of goods sold
Repair and maintenance
Legal & professional fees
Rates and taxes
Content cost

iT expenses

Travel and conveyance
Auditor’s remuneration
Customer care expenses
Charitable donaticn
Others

8 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Degpreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right of use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

2020 2019

Ushs milfion Ushs million

126,722 111,618

59,208 39,303

10,148 8,258

5,327 4,727

201,405 163,806

58,845 48,920

4,862 4,668

648 563

5,130 4,697

524 369

76,009 59,217

8,853 6,232

6,249 4243

37,572 34,021

15,667 9,058

6,802 3,642

14,731 13,436

5,532 3,445

623 688

8,388 G,083

1,274 227

2,771 5,771

108,462 89,846

11 135,247 134,147
12 85,092 72,580
14 15,450 16
235,789 206,743
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9 FINANCE INCOME/COSTS
(a} Finance income

Interest income on deposits
Interest income on others
Unrealised Exchange Fluctuation Gain

(b} Finance cosis

Interest expense on finance lease
Interest expense on borrowing
Interest on deferred spectrum
Realised exchange loss

Other finance charges

10 TAXATION

The Tax expense for the year is attributed to the following

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
2,746 1,186

- 24,656

3,551 11,005
6,297 36,847
42,494 41,337
23,837 41,141
4,297 -
5,948 4,033
916 1,245
77,487 87,756
161,154 113,515
14,592 20,025
175,746 133,540

The reconciliation between the amounts computed by applying the statutory income fax rate to the

profit before tax and income tax expense is summarized beiow.

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rates in Uganda
Tax expense at 30%

Effect of:

Adjustments in respect to previous years
{Income) / expense not (taxable) / deductible {net)

Income tax expense

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
581,614 450,215
30% 30%
174,484 135,065

- {1,856}

1,262 331
175,746 133,540
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10 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

{c} Income tax recoverable

{d)

income tax recoverable of Ushs 7,869 million (2015:

Opening balance

Advance tax paid

Current tax expense
Adjustments for Prior Period

Ciosing Balance

Deferred income tax

Ushs 9,752 million).

2020 2019

Ushs mitlion Ushs million
9,762 22,251
158,403 101,026
(161,154) (108,429)
358 (5,086)

7,869 9,762

The Company has a net deferred income tax lability of Ushs 74,352 million (2019: deferred tax
liability Ushs 59,760 million} arising from accelerated tax depreciation and other temporary

differences.

At Movement At

1 January 2020 for the year 31 December 2020

Ushs million Ushs million Ushs million

Accelerated tax depreciation 91,118 12,385 103,503
Short term timing differences

(31,358} 2,207 (29,151)

Net deferred tax liability 58,760 14,592 74,352

At Movement At

1 January 2019 for the year 31 December 2019

Ushs miliion Ushs million Ushs million

Accelerated tax depreciation 79,482 11,636 91,118

Short term timing differences (23,790) {7,568) {31,358}

Net deferred tax Liability 55,692 4,068 59,760

In 2018 Deferred tax asset of Ushs 15,957 million was recorded directly under Equity as
fransitional impact of recognition of Right of Use assets under IFRS 16 implementation.

(e} Income tax paid
2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
Withholding Tax deducted (394) {183}
Advance Tax Paid {150,601} (100,843)
Final Tax for 2019 {7,408) -
income Taxation paid {158,403) {101,026)
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

12 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

COST

At 1 January 2020
Additions
Assetretirement
Reclassification

At 31 December 2020

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2020

Charge during the year

Asset retirement
Reclassification

At 31 December 2020

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 Pecember 2020

COsT

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Asset retirement

At 31 December 2019

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 january 2019

Charge during the year

Asset retirement

At 31 December 2019

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2019

leasehoid Telecom Motor Grand Total
Building  equipment vehicle

Ushs Ushs Ushs Ushs
million million million million
11,000 561,226 3,684 575,910
493 98,749 - 4g,242
- (3,361) - (3,361)
5 - - 3]
11,499 656,614 3,684 671,797
7,206 155,748 3,213 166,167
1,687 82,935 471 85,092
- (1,713) - {1,713)
6 - - &
8,899 236,969 3,684 249,552
2,600 419,645 - 422,245
10,631 487,356 3,684 501,671
368 76,783 - 77,152
- (2,913) - (2,913)
11,000 561,226 3,684 575,910
5,587 86,950 2,282 84,829
1,619 70,040 921 72,580
- (1,242) - (1,242)
7,206 155,748 3,213 166,167
3,754 405,478 471 409,743
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)}

2020 2019
Ushs million  Ushs million
i3 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
CosT
At 1 January 1,116 1,116
At 31 December 2020 1,116 1,116
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2019 1,116 1,095
Depreciation for the year - -
At 31 December 2020 1,116 1,116
NET CARRYING AMOUNT - .

The investment property located on Plot 40, Wampewo Avenue, Kampala has been rented out to multiple tenants since
2017 The Company applies the cost model for its investment property and therefere the investment property is not fair
valued by an independent valuer. The depreciation method used for the depreciation is the straight line method. The

depreciation rate of the property is 5% whereas the usefu! life is 20 years.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer Dealer
Licence/Spectrum Bandwidth Goodwill Base Network Grand Total
Ushs million Ushs million  Ushs million Ushs million Ushs million  Ushs million

COST
At 1 January 2020 1,082 - 112,908 3,633 1,592 119,215
Additions** 373,370 - - - - 373,370
Adjustments (889) - - - - (389)
At 31 December 2020 373,563 - 112,908 3,633 1,592 491,696
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2020 1,034 - - 3,633 1,582 6,259
Charge during the year 15,450 - - - - 15,450
Adjustment (889} - - - - (889)
At 31 December 2020 15,595 - - 3,633 1,592 20,820
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2020 357,968 - 112,508 - - 470,876
COsT
At 1 January 2019 1,081 7,053 112,808 3,633 1,592 126,267
Additions - 4619 - - - 4,619
Adjustments*® 1 {11,672} - - - {11,671}
At 31 December 2019 1,082 - 112,908 3,633 1,592 119,215
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1January 2018 1,021 1,716 - 3,633 1,582 7,962
Charge during the year 13 3 - - - 16
Adjustments*® - {1,719} - - - (1,719)
At 31 December 2019 1,034 - - 3,633 1,592 6,259
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2019 48 - 112,908 - - 112,956

*As part of IFRS 16 implementation, indefeasible right to use of bandwidth has been re-classed to prepaid expenses
and is being expensed under Network Operating Expense over the period of contracts.

**pcquired licenses and spectrum are amortised commencing from the date when the related network is available for
intended use in the relevant jurisdiction. The useful lives range from two to twenty-five years. remaining amortisation
period of license as of 31 December 2020 for Nationa! Telecom ficence is 9.5 years and Spectrum License is 1.5 years.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

2020 2019
Ushs million  Ushs million
15 INVENTORIES

Telephanes and accessories 2,396 2,955
Sim cards and scratch cards 327 524
2,723 3,479
Less: Stock provision (779) (861)
1,944 2,618

Stock Provision
Opening Balance 8561 936
Additions 1,220 702
Utilisation (1,302) {777)
Closing Balance 779 861

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 20,320 19,478
Interconnect receivables 22,101 26,422
Roaming receivables 506 2,586
Other receivables 1,122 689
Amount due from related party refer to {18a) 34,784 12,674
Gross trade receivables 79,233 61,849
Provision for impairment {20,912) (24,229}
58,321 37,620

Trade receivables represent amounts due from channel partners, corporate customers and post-paid
customers. Interconnect receivables represent airtime revenue on the interconnection from other
telecommunication companies. The related interconnect liabilities are included in Note 22.

Roaming receivable represents the amounts outstanding with operators whose customers use the

network of the Company while travelling to Uganda and balances are being settled on monthly basis
through clearing house.
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {CONTINUED)

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade debtors and other receivables is as foliows:

As at 1 January

IFRS 9 charge
Receivable write off
Bad debt recovery

At 31 December

17 {a} PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expense
VAT recoverable
Advance rent
Advance to suppliers
Others

Employee receivables

At 31 December

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
24,229 21,671
1,928 2,558
{2,038} -
{3,207) -
20,912 24,229
2020 2018

Ushs million Ushs million
36,062 46,754
17,199 12,034
2,405 3,959

3,558 -

2,649 2,354

156 395

62,069 65,536

The carrying value disclosed is approximately equal to their fair value as they are short term in nature,

17{b} PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expense

2020
Ushs million

18,545

2018
Ushs million

8,343
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Company is 100% owned by Bharti Airtel Uiganda Holdings BY (BAUHBV} incorporated in Netherlands. The purchases mainly consist of
network equipment including refated software & services. Other related party companies are group companies to Airtet Africa Plc. The

purchases and sales are recharge for expenses incurred on behalf of the counter party.

Bharti Airtel international Netherlands BY

Bharti Airtel Limited

Airtel Networks Kenya Limited
Airtel Rwanda Limited

Bharti Airtel UK Limited

Airtel Tanzania Limited

Airtel Congo {DRC) S.A.
Network 121 Limited

Nxtra Data Limited

Airtel Networks Limited{Nigeria]
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc
Bharti international Singapore Pte Ltd
Airtel Malawi Limited

Centum Learning Limited
Airtel Ghana Limited

Celtel Niger S.A

Airtel {Seychelles) Limited
Bharti Hexacom Limited

Airtel Madagascar S.A

Airtel Congo S.A

Airtel Gabon S.A

Airtel Tchad S.A.

Bharti Airtel Services Limited
Bharti Airte! Africa B.V.

Total

Sale of goods and services
Airtel Networks Kenvya Limited
Bharti Airtel Limited

Airtel Networks Zambia Plc
Bharti Airtel UK Limited

Airtel Malawi Limited

Airtel Rwanda Limited

Airtel Tanzania Limited

Airtel Networks Limited{Nigeria)
Airtel Congo (DRC) S.A.

Bharti Airtel Kenya BV,
Singapore telecommunication Limited
Airtel Tchad S.A

Airtel Ghana Limited

Bharti Airte] Africa B.V

Airtel Madagascar S A

Airtel Congo S.A

Agrtel (Seychelles) Limited
Airtel Gabon S.A

Celtel Niger S.A

Jersey Airtel Limited

Total

Step up Parent

Step up Parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Feliow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Step up Parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

loint venture of fellow subsidiary

Feliow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Step up Parent

Fellow subsidiary
Step up parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Step up parent

Entity having significant influence over the group

Fellow subsidiary

loint venture of fellow subsidiary

Step up Parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Feliow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

27,738 25,438
10,455 10,127
9,344 8,365
3,148 3,049
1,605 2,563
1,369 417
446 637
441 470
427 510
369 381
313 509
254 -
123 21
56 103

21 1

6 1

2 3

1 -

0 1

0 1

o} 0

0 0

0 683

- 5,651
56,158 58,931
21,505 15,049
19,972 26,488
6,214 22
6,116 4,812
5,138 570
4,814 546
3,157 337
2,166 1,342
1,381 422
10 -

3 7

1 0

1 0

0 27

0 1

0 ?

0 o)

0 ]

0 14

0 1
70,478 50,043
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMETED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBSER 2020 {CONTINUED)

18 (a} RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)}

Name of related party

Receivable from related parties
Airtel Networks Kenya Limited
Airtel Malawi Limited

Bharti Airtel UK Limited

Bharti Airte! Limited

Airtel Rwanda Limited

Airtel Congo (DRC) S.A.

Airtel Networks Limited{Nigeria)
Airtel Networks Zambis Plc
Airtel Madagascar S.A

Airtel Niger S.A.

Africa Towers N.V.

Bharti Hexacom Limited
Singapore Telecommunications Limited
Total

Payables to related parties

Bharti Airtel international Netherlands BV,

Airtel Money BV

Bharti Int'] Singapore Pte itd
Network 12| Limited

Nxtra Data Limited

Bharti Airtel Services Limited
Alrtel Tanzania Limited
Centum Learning Limited
Bharti Airtel Sri Lanka (Private) Limited
Airtel Ghana Limited

Airtel Networks Zambia Plc
Airtel Congo (DRC) S.A.

Total

Key management compensation

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Step up parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
rellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Entity having significant influence over the group

Step up parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Step up Parent

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Relationship
to Company

Joint venture of fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow substdiary

2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
17,135 7,150
4,863 572
4,748 1,305
3,005 2,317
3,404 795
1,008 -
650 78
551

282 284
104 111

34 34

O -

0 28
34,784 12,674
4,942 4,911
367 428
365 394
294 296
182 431

75 75

[Si] 23

1 41

0 1

Q 1

- i3

- 112

6,295 6,727

KMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controliing the activities of the Company, directly or
indirectly, including any director, whether executive or otherwise. Remuneration to key management personnel were as follows.

Key Management Compensation

2020
Ushs million

5,787

2018
Ushs million

5,847
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

20 Share capital and Share premium

Total number of authorised shares is 28,800,000. The price per share for the first 14,400,000 is
Ushs 100. The price per share for the next 14,400,000 is Ushs 1,000.
Details are shown below:
2020 2019
Ushs million  Ushs million
Authorised share capital:

14,400,000 ordinary shares of Ushs 100 1,440 1,440
14,400,000 preference shares of Ushs 1,000 14,400 14,400
15,840 15,840

a) Ordinary shares issued and fully paid:
14,080,010 ordinary shares of Ushs 100 each 1,408 1,408

b} Share premium
6,080,000 ordinary shares of Ushs 100 each
issued at a premium of Ushs 900 in October 1994 5,472 5,472

8,000,000 ordinary shares of Ushs 100 each
issued at a premium of Ushs 1,332

in September 2000 10,656 10,656
16,128 16,128
Note Maturity 2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
21 BORROWINGS
Non-Current

DFCU 21{d) 2025 75,000 -

ABSA Bank Group 21{b} 2021 367,102 368,267

Stanbic Bank 21(c) 2022 55,956 -

Standard Chartered Bank 21{e} 2022 14,886

Debt origination fees 21{c&d} 2022 (572) -

Less: Current maturity of long term debt {367,102) -
145,270 368,267

Current

Bank overdraft 21(a} 80,185

Current maturity of iong term debt 367,102 -

447,287 -




AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

21 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)}

The movement in borrowings was as follows:

At 1 January 368,267 1,118,734
Proceeds from Term Loan 145,842 -
Proceeds from Bank Overdraft 80,185 -
Repayment - {749,932}
Debt arigination cost {572} 100
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (1,165) (635)

At 31 December 592,557 368,267
External Borrowings:

Bank overdraft

a} The Company utilised the bank averdraft facility from Citi Bank and Standard chartered bank to

b)

d)

e)

make payments for taxes, dividends and to other suppliers. The overdraft sanction limit is USD
13 Mn from Citi Bank and USD 8 Mn from Standard Chartered Bank. This facility is fungible
based on the payment requirements

ABSA Bank Group term loan facility

The Company obtained loan facility of Ushs 18,940 million and Ushs 59,792 miliion during the
months of November 2018 and December 2018 respectively for the purpose of aperational
working capital and tax payments. The Interest rate on the loan is margin rate of 3.30% plus
Treasury bill rate. These facilities have been renewed for another period on 27% November 2020
with a maturity date of 30™ April 2021.

During the month of October 2018 the Company obtained a lcan facility of USD 79 milfion at an
interest rate of Libor+1.8% repayable after one year, however this facility has been renewed
another period on 27" November 2020 with a maturity date of 31 December 2021 with an
extension fee of 0.1%.

Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited loan facility

The Company obtained a loan facility of Ushs 55,956 million on 11 December 2020 for the purpose
of License payment. The Company paid an upfront fee of Ushs 385.9 milfion on drawdown. The
Interest rate on the foan facility is margin rate of 2.75% plus Treasury bill rate at the time of
drawdown of 10.04%. This loan facility wili run for 30 months and mature on 31 December 2022.

DFCU Bank Uganda loan facility

The Company obtained a loan facility of Ushs 75,000 million on 11 December 2020 for the
purpose of spectrum expansion and payment of License renewal fees. The Company paid an
upfront fee of Ushs 562.5 million on drawdown. The Interest rate on the loan facility is margin
rate of 4.70% plus 182-day treasury bill rate on the day of drawdown of 9.8%. This loan facility
will run for 5 years inclusive of 12 months’ grace period with a maturity date of 11" December
2025.

Standard Chartered Bank Uganda loan facility

The Company obtained a loan facility of USD 4 millicn {equivalent to Ushs 14,885 million) on 11
December 2020 for the purpose of License renewal fees payment. The interest rate on the loan
facitity is margin rate of 0.859% plus 364-day Treasury bill at the time of drawdown of 13.051%.
This toan facility will mature on the 5th May 2022,
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 {CONTINUED)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Statutory and other payables

Equipment supply payables

Interest accrued but not due

Interconnect payables

Amounts due to related parties refer to (18a)

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
127,415 108,012
57,815 49,340
18,773 58,559
2,609 1,126

784 773

65,295 6,727
213,691 224,537

Interconnect charges payable represent interconnection costs with other telecommunication
companies. The related interconnect debtors are included in Note 16.

Statutory & other payables include excise duty payable, VAT payable which are not yet due for payment
and also includes provision for legal cases which are rated as probable amounting to Ushs 3,421 million

{(2018: Ushs 3,520 miltion). Provision for Tax cases Ushs 1,623 million (2019: Nil)

23 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred income

Deferred income relates to payments received in advance for airtime services offered to prepaid
customers which have not yet been consumed. Performance obligation with respect to unearned

revenue is expected to be completed within one year.

24 PROVISIONS

Current
Leave encashment
Severance pay

Non-current

Leave encashment
Severance pay

Asset retirement obligation

2020
Ushs million

15,083

2015
Ushs million

13,953

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
733 631

28 21

761 652

1,238 1,845

138 128

15 11

2,091 2,084
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AIRTEL UGANDA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

24 PROVISIONS {CONTINUED)

{a}Leave Encashment
Opening Balance
Charge for the year
Payments for the year

2020 2019

Ushs miflion Ushs million
2,576 1,847

544 737

(449) (108)

2,671 2,576

The Company has a policy fer employee benefits, specifically applicable to leave encashment and
severance pay in line with tAS 19. The valuation is performed on a quarterly basis by a third party, and
all assumptions considered for evalfuation are revised on an annual basis.

(b)Severance Pay

Opening Balance

Charge for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
148 160

44 15

(26} (27}

166 148

There’s change in assumptions of discount rate to 16.25% as against 14.75% which resulted in
impact of Ushs 27 Million recorded as other comprehensive income during the year. (2019: Ushs

27 million).

Due to its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to the following risks:
Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plans lizbility is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of the plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants

will increase the plan’s liability.

The financial {a year rates) and demographic assumptions used to determine defined benefit

obligations are as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Discount rate 16.25% per annum

Rate of return on plan assets
Rate of salary increase

Rate of attrition

Retirement age

Not applicable
6% per annum

11.3%
60 years

14.75% per annum
Not applicable

6% per annum
11.0%

60 years

The Company regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term pians and

prevalent industry standards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

24 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

The impact of sensitivity due te changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined
benefit obligations at 100 basis points is given in the table below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Retirement Severance Retirement Severance
benefits benefits benefits benefits

Discount Rate +1.00% 2,611 159 2,534 145
-1.00% 2,765 173 2,618 153

Salary Increase Rate +1.00% 2,759 173 2,615 153
-1.00% 2,616 159 2,537 145

Withdraw! Rate +1.00% 2,689 157 2,579 145
-1.00% 2,682 174 2,571 153

The above sensitivity analysis is determinad based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the
net defined benefit obligations, because of reasonable possible changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions. Further, the above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in 2
particular underlying actuarial assumption, while assuming all other assumptions to be constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.

The table below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the defined benefits plan liability:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Retirement Severance Retirement | Severance
benefits benefits benefits benefits

Within one year 747 28 631 22
Within one-three years 1,202 67 1,053 53
Within three-five years 923 83 830 66
Above five years 1,328 262 1,316 219

Total 4,200 440 3,890 359
Weighted average duration in 5 5 7 6
years
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25 LEASE LIABILITY

Non-Current
Tower and Infrastructure

Current
Tower and Infrastructure
Vehicle

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million
427,265 428,622
427,265 428,622
96,944 80,904

211 69

97,155 80,973

During the year, the financing cost relating to lease liabilities was Ushs 42,494 million (2019: 41,337

millian).
The movement of finance lease was as follows:

At 1 January
IFRS 16 Adjustment

As at 1 January {adjusted)
Additions

Repayment

Retirement

Unrealised Foreign exchange

At 31 Pecember

The future minimum lease payments of the above finance leases are as follows:

Lease liabilities

Maturity analysis:

Less than one year

Later tharn one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years
Later than five years but not later than nine years
Later than nine years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million

509,595 254,534

- 257,639

509,585 512,173

98,593 77,153

{75,580) (68,491}

{1,904) (1,907)

(6,284) (9,333)

524,420 509,595
As of As of
December, 30 December, 31
2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
134,008 119,561
125,425 119,240
290,811 250,918
88,201 102,662
16,173 16,201
654,618 648,582
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26. (a) Other Non-Current Liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has capitalized deferred spectrum license
payments, for which the Company is under an obligation for payment tilf the expiry of the license period.
Conseguently, intangible assets have been recognized at the present value of such payments.

At 1 January
Additions

At 31 December

(b} Other Current Liabilities

At 1January

Additions

Repayment of Liability
Interest accrued{Gain)
Unrealised Exchange Loss

At 31 December

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The details of derivative financial instruments are as follows:

Foreign currency forward contracts {liabilities}

2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
115,192 -
115,192 -
2020 2019
Ushs million Ushs million
11,657 -
(11,333} -
4,292 -
(2,627) -
1,989 -

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million

1,506 307
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28 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILTIES

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the financial
instruments that are recognised in the Financial Statements. The carrying amount of the financial

assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values because of their short term nature as
shown below.

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Particulars At 31 At 31 At 31 At 31

December  December December December

2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 34,254 48,493 34,254 48,493
Trade and other receivables 58,321 37,620 58,321 37,620
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities carried at fair value through
profit or loss
- Derivatives 1,506 307 1,506 367
Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Borrowings- floating rate 592,557 368,267 592,557 368,267
Trade & other payables 213,691 224,537 213,691 224,537
Lease liabilities 524,420 509,595 524,420 509,595
Other liabilities 117,181 - 117,181 -

29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a)

Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2020, there were legal proceedings valued at Ushs 1,233 million {2019: Ushs
1,114 million) outstanding against the Company. No provision has been made as the value of
probable loss that may arise from these cases is NIL.

Tax proceedings

As at 31 December 2020, there were tax proceedings valued at Ushs 7,812 million {2019: Ushs

11,412) outstanding against the Company. No provision has been made as the value of prebable
loss that may arise from these cases is NIL.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments of Ushs 33,416 million (2019: Ushs 67,783 millicn) represent the
unexecuted capital contracts as at 31 December 2020. These are contracts between Airtel
Uganda Limited and its vendors for the provision of Capex material.

2020 2015
Ushs million Ushs million
Within one year 33,416 67,783
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30 DIVIDENDS DECLARED

31

The profit for the year amounted to Ushs 405,868 million (2015: Ushs 316,675 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2020 the directors recommended interim dividends on 28™ May 2020 amounting
to Ushs 63,360 million, on 20™ August 2020 amounting to Ushs 80,256 million and on 7% December
2020 amounting to Ushs 119,680 million totailing to Ushs 263,296 million (2019: Ushs 172,480 million).
The interim dividends per ordinary share declared during the year was Ushs 18,700.

2020 2019

Ushs million Ushs million

At 1 January - 112,640
Final dividend 121,088 112,640
Interim dividend 263,296 172,480
Dividend Paid {384,384} {397,760}

At 31 December - -

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

There were no material subsequent events for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Directors are
not aware of any other matter or circumstances since the financial year end and the date of this
report, not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements, which significantly affects the financial
position of the Company and the results of its operations.

55



